
 
City of Philadelphia Procurement Department 

Mayor’s Office of Information Services (MOIS) 
 

Addendum No. 3     Dated: August 22, 2007 
RFP No. C-101-08  
Revised Proposal Submission Deadline: Wednesday, September 5, 2007 at 10:30 AM 
EDST 

 
 

NOTICE 
It is the sole responsibility of the Proposer to ensure it has received  any and all addenda and 
the Procurement Commissioner may in his/her sole discretion reject any proposals for which 
all addenda have not been executed and returned. 
 

PROPOSAL FOR  
 

Concession To Provide Public Pay Telephone Service in City Facilities and Public Pay 
Telephone and Inmate Telephone Services in the Philadelphia Prison System 

 
RFP No. C-101-08 

 
IS AMENDED AS FOLLOWS 

 
I.  Revision to Proposal Submission Date.  The revised Proposal Submission deadline is 
Wednesday, September 5, 2007 at 10:30 AM EDST, Procurement Department Bid Room, 
Room 170A, MSB, 1401 JFK Blvd, Philadelphia, PA, 19102. 
 
II. Answers to Questions as follows:  
 
Q.  We request that the City grant an extension to the due date of August 24th. 
This is a very comprehensive project to configure and plan properly? We need 
ample time to review the questions submitted and prepare a comprehensive 
quality response. 
     A.  The RFP submission date has been extended to September 5th at 
10:30am. 
Q.  Can a vendor respond to this RFP and not respond to the request for 
payphones at the airport? 
     A.  No, all respondents must submit a proposal and pricing for the 
all three components (City Facilities, Airports, and Prisons) to be 
eligible for an award.  Please see RFP, Section 1.1. 
 
Q.  What is the current ADP per facility? 
     A.  See Attachment A. 
Q. Please confirm if the 5 minute call on the intake phones is collect or direct 

calling. 
A. 5 Minute direct non PIN related if it is a local call.  Non-local 
must call collect. 

Q.  Paperless debit calling – Will the vendor interface with Keefe Commissary? 
      A.  That is the preferred method. Keefe is the current vendor. 
Q.  Can the type of phones be changed and if there is any specific phone PPS 
should require what would be the specifications? 
      A.  Phone may be changed by mutual agreement of the PPS, MOIS 
and vendor. No specs will be provided by the city as part of this 
solicitation. 



Q.  How long of recording online does PPS require? 
      A.  Records must be stored for seven years and be accessible. 
Immediate access must be available for at least the last six months at 
any time 
Q.  How many languages does PPS require for the system to have? 
      A.  Spanish is mandatory. Provision for other language selection 
without call delay may be presented and considered. 
Q.  Are the power outlets on a generator? 
      A.  This question is non-specific and not answerable in its current 
form. 
Q.  What type of security clearance do they require for any personal needed on 
site? 
      A.  PPS Contractor Policy is attached. 
Q.  Are there any union implications associated with the installation process? 
      A.  This question is non-specific and not answerable in its current 
form. 
Q.  RFP requires 7 years of storage. Contract term is only 1 year with 3-1 year 
options = 4 years. Please clarify how we are to meet the seven year requirement? 
      A.  Contractor is required to retain records for three (3) years 
beyond the possible term of the contract four (4) plus three (3) 
=seven (7).  All recordings belong to the City. In the event that a 
vendor change occurs all records must be provided to the City in 
readable format. 
Q.  RFP states that tariff rates can be charged. There are specific rates in place 
with the current provider. Please clarify what PPS requires for local, IntraLata, 
InterLata and InterState rates. 
      A.  These rates are to be provided by the respondent. 
Q.  How many calls and minutes are generated from the Law Library Phones per 
year? 
      A.  This information is not specifically available. See attachment 
E. 
Q.  Routers that interface fiber with copper; confirm current ownership of 
routers in place and the specifications associated with those routers. 
      A.  All Routers for Inmate Phone system were supplied by AT&T.  
Specs Unknown. 
Q.  Several facilities have inmate lines located in telephone room closets that are 
not labeled. In PICC the inmate lines could not be found in the two closets that 
were inspected. We request that PPS have the current service provider identify 
and tag those lines so that the conversion of the inmate lines to a new system 
can be cost estimated. 
      A.  This is a matter that will be negotiated 
Q.  Several facilities have touch screen electronic shut off switches. STI is the 
company that installed them and is no longer in business. The addition of new 
phones in those facilities will be required to interface with the electronic system. 
Please provide the manufacturer and contact information so that we can 
determine the associated costs to interface. 
      A.  This is an inaccurate statement.  
Q.  Cambria Community Center; is it connected to the fiber network? 
      A.  No. CCC is connected to the PPS/MIS Production LAN only via 
T1. 
Q.  What type of fiber and method of connection; single mode or multi mode, ST 
or SC? 
      A.  Single Mode fiber is utilized between buildings on the PPS 
campus.  The Single mode fiber is shared between the PPS 
Production LAN, the PPS Inmate LAN, and the Inmate Phone system.  



Q.  -Wavelength currently for fiber (850nM … 1310nM) 
      A.  Do not know 
Q.  How many strands of fiber are currently being used at each facility for 
telephones as part of this contract? -Fiber map and routing from current vendor 
to determine short or long haul power requirements 
      A.  See attached drawing.  Airport cable requirements and 
availability are addressed in the RFP, Section 2.2.5 E. 
Q.  How many work stations will be needed at each prison and location for each 
one? 
      A.  Define workstation. 
Q.  How long of in advance notice do they require for a tech to be on site for 
repairs? 
      A.  Technician is assigned to PPS.  No notice needed. Airport, 
please see RFP, Section 2.2.5 G(2) 
Q.  Can any parts and tools be left on site during the installation or afterwards? 
      A. Onsite must be defined.  Not within secure perimeter. 
Q.  What are the hours can installer or tech work on site during installation or 
repairs? 
      A.  To be negotiated. 
Q.  Is escort required to work at equipment room, phone room, and inside the 
prison? 
      A.  This is installation time dependent. 
Q.  Period of Concession Contract is 1 Year with 3 (1) Year Options. We request 
that the City reconsider the term of the contract due to the capital investment 
and scope of the project required to compete with the incumbent provider GTL? 
      A.  The City Policy for this RFP is to award 1 Year with 3 (1) year 
options. 
Q.  On page 14-15 of the issued RFP the City is stating that the deadline for all 
questions is August 1, 2007.  However, the RFP was first advertised (based on 
the information provided by procurement) August 3, 2007.  Is the City still 
accepting questions?  If so what is the deadline on these questions as I am sure 
more will arise once a thorough review of this solicitation has taken place and 
the pre-bid meeting has been completed. 
      A.  August 1, 2007 date was an error.  Per Addendum #2, 
questions have been extended to August 20, 2007. 
Q.  Please provide, by housing unit within each facility, the number of phones 
present and the maximum (as currently configured) number of inmates each 
housing unit can contain.  This is needed to determine our costs for equipment 
and labor to conform to the request to add phones. 
      A.  Census and phone inventory being provided.  See Attachment 
A and Attachment D.  
Q.  Please provide the number of phones that the facility wishes added, by 
housing unit, so that all vendors are on an equal and level playing field. 
      A.  Ratio included on Policy which was provided.  See Attachment 
E. 
Q.  Please provide a network diagram of the current inmate telephone system 
backbone infrastructure between facilities.  If fiber or copper please indicate the 
number of strands or pairs. 
      A.  See Attachment C. 
Q.  Is there existing room in the conduits between buildings and within the 
facilities should additional connectivity or phones be needed? 
      A.  No. 
Q.  Please provide, by building, call volumes (number of calls and minutes) 
defined by call type (local, intralata, interlata, out of state). 
      A.  Not available. 



Q.  Please provide revenue figures by building based upon call type (local, 
intralata, interlata, out of state). 
     A.  Not available. 
Q.  Please provide by building the number of free calls and minutes for these free 
calls. 
      A.  Not available. 
Q.  Please provide the current rates that are in place for local calls, intralata 
calls, interlata calls and out of state calls.  Please include per minute cost and 
connection fees. 
      A. Current rate at the Airport for a local coin call is 50 cents.  Five 
minutes of long distance coin calls anywhere in the Continental 
U.S.A. is $1.00 in coins only. 
Q.  If awarded please define the hours that our technicians can work on system 
installation. 
      A.  Negotiable. 
Q.  Can you provide a list of companies that attended the pre-bid? 
      A.  See Attachment F. 
Q.  If we elect to utilize a sub-contractor for providing service did that sub-
contract need to be present at the mandatory pre-bid? 
      A.  No. 
Q.  Are calls from the law library limited to local calls only? 
      A.  Yes. 
Q.  Please provide the name and contact for your commissary vendor. 
      A.  Tim Ward, Account Manager, Keefe Supply Company, 301 Mill 
Road, Edison,NJ 08837, #(732) 509-0132, e-mail: 
tward@keefesupply.com 
Q.  If we are using our own employees who are not Philadelphia residents are we 
bound by the wage requirements as stated within this RFP? 
      A.  Yes. 
Q.  In PICC, the phones cut off switches are integrated into the computer 
controlled security system.  It is our understanding that this company is out of 
business.  If we need to add phones, are manual cut off switches acceptable? 
     A.  Yes. 
Q.  In the maximum housing unit at PICC cages are located around the phones.  
If phones need to be added, who supplies the cages? 
      A.  PPS. 
Q.  In Riverside there are tables that have enclosures for phones.  Who owns the 
enclosures - the city or the current vendor? 
      A.  Current vendor. 
Q.   
Some vendors add additional non-disclosed fees to both inmates and called 
parties. These vendors do not pay commission on these fees since they are not 
part of the collect, pre-paid or debit call costs. These fees include, but are not 
limited to, opening and closing fees for called parties to setup accounts, fees that 
appear on bills for use of certain phone features such as voice verification, 
security fees, processing recovery fees, additional charges for processing debit 
calls, transaction fees charge to inmates for entering commissary orders over the 
phone, and any other features or products offered to the facility. Different 
vendors refer to these fees with different terminologies but they all represent 
additional costs to the inmate or the called party over and above the surcharge 
and per minute rate.   It appears that the city is attempting to minimize calling 
cost to both inmates and the public by setting the calling costs.  With this in 
mind are vendors permitted to charge fees in addition to the standard surcharge, 
per minute charge and applicable state, local and federal taxes? If no, please 
detail the allowed charges that may be passed on to the inmate or called party. 



     A.  No surcharges for direct, law library, collect, or debit calls may 
be charged. Charges for additional services beyond these will be 
negotiated if relevant. 
Q.  Please provide the current fees, which are being charged to the inmate or 
called party. 
      A.  See attachment B. 
Q.  In the RFP the City is requesting one full time site administrator.  ITI learned 
during the walk through that the current vendor is providing two.  Is it the 
intention of the City to have one or two administrators? 
       A. There is one technician and one site administrator. 
Q.  Can the City please provide information mentioned in RFP regarding PCS 
meeting? 
     A.  The City of Philadelphia met with PCS,Inc on June 6th to learn 
about the current market trends regarding the payphone industry 
(i.e. coin and debit) 
Q.  Will the City allow Bidders to force all traditional Inmate Collect Calles to 
Pre-Paid Collect as is the trend for some companies in the industry? Note: This 
process requires all called parties to set up an account and pay in advance. 
      A.  No. 
Q. If a called to party is using a telephone company other than Verizon such as a 
cable company for their telephone service, and or has a bad payment history can 
vendors direct these callers to a Pre-Pay Call Center to establish a Prepaid 
Account as is done today at Philadelphia Prison System? Note: This is different 
from forcing ALL Collect Calls to Pre Paid. 
      A. Yes, using accepted pre-verification practices on companies 
without payment arrangements. Vendors must provide the process 
for determining poor payment history before City will approve. 
Q.  Will the PPS extend the current due date for the RFP. 
     A.  The Procurement Department has extended the due date of the 
RFP to September 5th at 10:30 am. 
Q.  Please provide current call detail reports: all interlata, intralata, interstate, 
local, free calls, and any other reports.  Current commissions and revenues for at 
least 6 months. 
      A.  This was provided as Addendum #1. 
Q.  Please provide current rates for all calling options. 
      A.  See attachment B. 
Q.  Will the PPS provide the current contract? 
      A.  This is not a PPS contract.  The current contract is of public 
record and is available for inspection. 
Q.  The RFP states numbers of phones:  what is the correct amount of phones for 
all facilities? 
      A.  For Airports, please see RFP, Section 2.2.3.  Prisons, see 
Attachment D. 
Q.  How many new phones will be needed?  During the walk thru we were told 
that phones would be needed. 
      A.  See Attachment E. 
Q.    TTY phones for the hearing impaired at PPS facilities; How many TTY 
phones are required at each facility? What specifications are required by PPS? 
Where does PPS want the TTY phones installed at each location? 
      A.  There are two (2) portable TTY phones per facility. 
Q.  Please provide the Use and Occupancy Tax amount required by the City. 
      A.  Airport and Prisons locations in which the successful 
respondent will use office space will be subject to Use and Occupancy 
tax.  The Use and Occupancy tax amount required by City for the 
office space allocated for the Airport concessionaire is currently 



$28.50/monthly.     
Q.  Due to the extensive scope of this project we request that the installation date 
be revised. After an actual award date there is a minimum of 45 days to order 
and receive circuits required to facilitate the installation of a new system. 
      A.  There is no specific installation date required in the RFP. 
Q.  It is our understanding from reading the solicitation and information gained 
from procurement that the current contract is due to expire at the end of 
September.  It is also our understanding that the current vendor is GTL utilizing 
a Securus calling platform.  We understand that the systems are to be fully 
installed at the end of this contract period (September 30, 2007).  Because of the 
tremendous amount of equipment that would have to be purchased and the 
lengthy implementation effort required to replace an incumbent vendor we 
respectfully ask that you consider going month-to-month with your current 
vendor extending the installation deadline to December.  An installation date of 
September 20th would present an unfair advantage for GTL and Securus. 
      A.  There is no requirement for installation of all equipment by 
September 20, 2007.  It is expected that respondents will propose a 
schedule for installation. 
Q.  Please clarify the request for a bid bond for this RFP. 
      A.  No bid bond is required for the proposals to be submitted in 
response to this RFP, although a Performance Bond will be required 
for the Concession Agreement to be awarded to each successful 
respondent to this RFP, as set forth in Section 1.9 of the RFP.   
Q.  The RFP states numbers of phones:  what is the correct amount of phones for 
all facilities? 
      A.  See attachment D. 
 
 
 
 
Please sign, date and return this addendum with your proposal, as it now becomes part or 
the proposal. 
 
Company Name (type or print)________________________________________________
  
Authorized Signature_________________________________Title__________________ 
 
Name(type or print)__________________________________Date__________________  
 
 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
Address 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
Telephone/Fax 
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